
 
 

THE CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 27, 2024, AT 7:00 PM 
86 W CENTER ST., DOUGLAS MI 

AGENDA 
 

To view remotely, online or by phone - 
Join online by visiting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85738350628 

Join by phone by dialing: +1 (312) 626 - 6799 | Then enter “Meeting ID”: 857 3835 0628 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 
 

3. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
Nominations from the floor, Elected by Majority Vote 
- Chair 
- Vice-Chair 
- Secretary 
 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
A. Motion to Approve the February 29, 2024 minutes 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARING 

A. Public Hearing and Decision: 91 Mixer – Relief from Section 21.01 12 (a) (3) to allow fencing to be placed 
in the Road Right-of-Way 
 
1) Chairman declares the Public Hearing Open 

2) Presentation of Written Communications 

3) Presentation by the Petitioner 

4) Comments from the Audience/Response from the Petitioner 

5) Questions/Comments from the ZBA Members 

6) Chairman declares Public Hearing Closed 

7) Motion to Approve, Deny, or Approve with Conditions, or Table (Roll Call Vote) 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83108824160


6. NEW BUSINESS 
 

7. OLD BUSINESS 

8. REPORTS OF OFFICERS, MEMBERS, COMMITTEES 

9. PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – VERBAL (LIMIT OF 5 MINUTES) 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
Please Note – The City of the Village of Douglas (the “City”) is subject to the requirements of the Americans 
with Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require 
certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have 
questions regarding the accessibility of this meeting or the facilities, are requested to contact Laura Kasper, City 
Clerk, at (269) 857-1438 ext. 106, or clerk@douglasmi.gov to allow the City to make reasonable 
accommodations for those persons. CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, ALLEGAN COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 

mailto:clerk@douglasmi.gov


City of the Village of Douglas Zoning Board of Appeals                          2/29/2024                                     Page 1 of 5  

 
 

THE CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) MEETING 

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 29, 2024, AT 7:00 PM 

86 W CENTER ST., DOUGLAS MI 
 

MINUTES 

 
 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER Chair Schumacher called the meeting to order at 7:00PM 
 
2. ROLL CALL  
 

Present - Kutzel, Pullen, Pattison, Freeman, Schumacher 
                   Also Present – Tricia Anderson, Williams & Works 
                                                 Sean Homyen, Deputy Clerk                        

 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion to Approve; ZBA Meeting 2-29-24.  

Pullen moved, with support from Kutzel to approve February 29, 2024 meeting agenda as presented. 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Motion to Approve; ZBA Meeting, 1-8-2024.  
 
Chair Schumacher noted that his name was spelled wrong throughout the minutes.  He also pointed out 

some grammatical errors.  

 

Kutzel moved, with support from Pullen, to approve the January 8, 2024 ZBA meeting minutes, subject to 
the corrections requested. 
 
Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote. 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - VERBAL (LIMIT OF 3 MINUTES): No verbal communication received. 
 
6. PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – WRITTEN  
 

A. Communications were received from the Saugatuck Douglas Fire District related to the driveway easement 

width, and from the City Engineer related to drainage and what the Allegan County Drain Commission’s role 

is in the review of projects that impact drainage.   



City of the Village of Douglas Zoning Board of Appeals                          2/29/2024                                     Page 2 of 5  

 

7. NEW BUSINESS (none) 

 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
A. 314 Ferry Street – Dimensional Variance requests from Section 50.2.C, Site and Building Placement 

Standards and Sections 16.13(4), Street Setbacks and 16.13(7) Front Yard Prohibition – Chris Meyer 
(Public Hearing adjourned and decision postponed on 1.8.24) 

 
1) Reopen Public Hearing 

Chair Schumacher reopened the public hearing that was adjourned from the January 8, 2024 

ZBA meeting.   

  
2) Presentation of Written Communications: 

a. Communication received from the applicant, Chris Meyer, who indicated that his sister, Jenna Meyer 

would be present at the meeting on behalf of the applicant as he was ill.  

 
3) Presentation by the Petitioner:  

Jenna Meyer, of 6391 West Canterberry Dr., Belmont, Michigan 49306, was present on behalf 

of the applicant and noted that she’s open to any questions the board may have related to the 

staking that has since been completed per the Zoning Board’s request.  

 
4) Public Comments: 

a. Sean Dwyer, of 342 Ferry St. asked about the size about the home.  He noted that the size 
in itself is considered self-created. 
 

5) Interim Planning & Zoning Administrator Comments:  
Ms. Anderson encouraged the zoning board to evaluate each criterion and make a determination as to 

whether they have each been met.  She reminded the Zoning Board that the applicant, by right, can still 

build on the lot, as he indicated his confidence with the EGLE permit being approved, regardless of the 

outcome of the variance request.  She added that the purpose for the request is to allow the home to 

be located at 10’ from the rear property line in order to have the least impact on the wetlands as 

possible.  She also noted that the fire department would require an expansion of the existing driveway 

easement since it is currently 15’ where 16’ is required.  She added that this fact even further 

substantiates the practical difficulty in meeting the letter of the ordinance due to the encumbrances by 

wetlands, the shared driveway easement that must now be expanded, and then the fact that the 

traveled surface of the driveway actually encroaches onto the applicant’s property outside of the 

easement.  She also reiterated that the applicant and the neighboring property owner who utilizes the 

shared driveway, will ultimately need to come to a consensus on improvements that are needed and 

the need for a shared driveway agreement.  

 
6) ZBA Comments:  

Members of the Zoning Board discussed the offer of perhaps granting the variance at 15’ from the 

property line instead of 10’.  They felt that 10’ was awfully close and some do not recall ever granting a 

variance for a structure that close to the rear property line.   

 

Chair Schumacher wondered what kind of a precedent would be set if the variance to locate the home 



City of the Village of Douglas Zoning Board of Appeals                          2/29/2024                                     Page 3 of 5  

at 10’ to the property line was granted.   

 

Ms. Anderson indicated that a precedent wouldn’t be and shouldn’t be set, based on the vast range of 

variables that differ among different properties.  And that any other variance that is requested for a 

home to be permitted to be placed at 10’ from the rear property line would also need to meet the 

criteria – and if it does not, then a variance should not be granted.  She also added that accessory 

buildings such as detached garages are only required to be 10’ from side and rear property lines.  

 

Ms. Anderson cautioned the zoning board in offering to grant a variance that did not align with how the 

public was noticed, and that at this point, a plan does not exist that would reflect the request for a 

home to be placed at 15’ from the property line.  She added that the applicant would also want to have 

a say in it, but that it should be noticed as such and it should be based on a plan that depicts the 

requested variance.  

 

The applicant confirmed that they would need to discuss whether they could be ok with shaving 5’ off 

the home so that a lesser variance could be granted. Members noted that the minimum lot size is 1,000 

square feet and the drawing shows 1,700 square feet. Members also had questions regarding the 

garage such as the size, the look, and the proposed setback of the detached garage.   

 

Chair Schumacher indicated that the variance request for the garage would be considered separately 

from the home.   

 

 Freeman asked about the drawing and whether the square feet on the site plan represented the 

footprint of the house.   

 

 Ms. Anderson asked for confirmation from Ms. Meyer and noted that the plan shows the proposed 

impervious surface since this is the plan that the applicant submitted to EGLE, which is only interested 

in knowing the impact on the wetlands by way of proximity and areas of impervious surface.  

 

 Kutzel indicated that he believes that the house is too big and if the footprint is made a little smaller 

then they only have to grant 10’ of relief, rather than 15’. 

    

The zoning board then discussed the option of granting only a 10’ variance vs. 15 feet.  Ken said that 

would be better than nothing.   

 

Ms. Anderson reminded the Zoning Board that the request for a variance is needed to have a lesser 

impact on the wetlands.  She believes that some retaining walls are proposed and that the staking may 

not give a clear picture of what the finished product would look like.   

 

 The applicant (Jenna) confirmed that they would need to discuss whether they could be ok with shaving 

5 feet off the house so that a lesser variance could be granted. 

 

7) Close Public Hearing 
 Chair Schumacher closed the public hearing.  

 



City of the Village of Douglas Zoning Board of Appeals                          2/29/2024                                     Page 4 of 5  

8) Motion to Approve, Deny, or Approve with Conditions – House location only 
Chair Schumacher noted that he would accept a motion to approve, deny, or tabling of the 
request.  
 
Pattison moved, with support from Freeman, to grant the variance request to locate the home 
at 314 Ferry St. at 10’ from the rear property line.   
 
Chair Schumacher asked if there was any further discussion.   
 
Kutzel noted that this is self-created.  He compared it to the houses on the lakeshore and they 
propose a large building footprint on a postage stamp-sized lot.   
 
Motion fails with a roll call vote as follows: 
 

Pattison – yes 
Freeman – yes  
Pullman – no 
Kutzel – no 
Schumacher – no.   

 
Chair Schumacher picked the discussion back up on the request to locate the detached garage in 

the front yard where prohibited, at 5’ from the front property line.  He asked for comments 

from the applicant’s representative. 

 

Ms. Meyer addressed the location and why it needed to be located there.  She added that this is 

the only location to place a garage since they cannot have an attached garage due to the 

wetlands limitation.  She added that part of the footprint shown on the plan includes the driving 

surface.  

 

Chair Schumacher asked for comments from the Zoning Board.   

 

Freeman asked if the garage is proposed as a two-story building.  Ms. Meyer said that it was.  

She added that they are unsure exactly what the building would look like at this point.   

 

Pattison commented on the location and indicated that she was comfortable with where it was 

located. 

 

Chair Schumacher asked Ms. Anderson if conditions could be placed on the approval of a 

variance request.  Ms. Anderson said that reasonable conditions may be added to an approval.  

He was concerned with the garage in the location proposed because it would stand out.  He 

wondered if the zoning board could require the applicant to use materials that allow the garage 

to have a more residential look and feel.  Ms. Anderson responded saying that yes, that is 

reasonable.   

 

The Zoning Board agreed that they’d like to see more details on the garage, with driving surfaces 

and the building dimensions delineated.   

 



City of the Village of Douglas Zoning Board of Appeals                          2/29/2024                                     Page 5 of 5  

Chair Schumacher closed the public hearing and indicated he’d take a motion.   

 
9) Motion to Approve, Deny, or Approve with Conditions – Garage only 

Motion by Kutzel, seconded by Freeman, to table the request based on the finding that they 
feel more detail should be provided so they know what’s impervious and what is planned for 
the actual building footprint.   
 
Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote.  

 
10) REPORTS OF OFFICERS, MEMBERS, COMMITTEES – None 

 
11) PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – VERBAL (LIMIT OF 5 MINUTES) – None received 

 
12) ADJOURNMENT  

Motion by Kutzel, seconded by Pullen to adjourn 
 

         Motion carried unanimously by voice vote 
 
 
 

 



City of the Village of Douglas  
Zoning Board of Appeals - August 27, 2024 
Page 1 of 4 
 

fts 
 

 
  

 
  
Request. Mr. Jonathan Karmel has submitted an application for a non-use variance under 
Section 29.05 (1), Non-Use Variance, that would provide relief from Section 21.01 (12) (a) (3). 
No fence shall be permitted in the street right-of-way or easement, in the R-3 Neighborhood 
Conservation District. Specifically, the applicant is seeking the following variance: 

1. Relief from Section 21.01 (12) (a) (3) to allow fencing to be placed in the Road Right-of-
Way 

 
Background. The subjected property is located at 91 Mixer on the corner of Mixer St. and 
Randolph St., zoned as R-3 Neighborhood Conservation 
District, and is 0.21 acres (9,147.6 SF). This parcel is apart of 
the Mixer’s Addition plat. The property owner hired a contractor 
to install a fence. However the contractor did not pull a fence 
permit to construct the fence. Upon discovery, a past review of 
a survey shows that the home enroaches past the property 
line. The survey is included with the packet. The property 
owner has the right to seek a variance. 
 
Pre-Hearing Conference. Section 29.05.3) requires that a 
pre-hearing conference be held to ensure that the applicant 
understands the requirements and procedures related to 
seeking relief from the Ordinance. I have been in 
communication with the applicant which fulfills the 
requirements of a pre-hearing conference, as described in the 
ordinance language below: 
 
Section 29.05 Variances 
3. Pre-hearing. Conference 
 
a. Prior to the scheduling of a hearing, the applicant shall 
contact the Zoning Administrator for the purpose of scheduling 
a pre-hearing conference with the Zoning Administrator and 
City Attorney. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To: City of the Village of Douglas City Council 

Date: August 14, 2024 

From: Sean Homyen, Planning & Zoning Administrator 

RE: 91 Mixer – Variance Request - Relief from Section 
21.01 (12) (a) (3) to allow fencing to be placed in 
the Road Right-of-Way 



City of the Village of Douglas  
Zoning Board of Appeals - August 27, 2024 
Page 2 of 4 
 

b. The purposes of the pre-hearing conference shall be to: 
i. Review the procedure for the hearing and identify all persons who will testify 
(directly or through affidavit) and the evidence to be offered on behalf of the 
applicant. 
ii. Attempt to secure a statement of agreed upon facts to be used to narrow the 
matters of dispute and shorten the hearing. 
iii. Explore a means of providing relief to the applicant by way of non-use variance 
from the zoning board of appeals, or other relief which may require action by 
persons or bodies other than the zoning board of appeals which will afford an 
adequate remedy for the applicant. 
iv. Discuss the need, desirability, and the terms of providing, a verbatim record of 
the hearing 
 

c. The Zoning Administrator shall determine who should be present at the pre-hearing 
conference based upon the application submitted, and taking into consideration the 
discussion with the applicant or the applicant's representative. 
d. The pre-hearing conference shall be scheduled and conducted on an expeditious 
basis so as to avoid unreasonable delay to the applicant. Sufficient time shall be 
taken, however, to achieve the purposes of the pre-hearing conference, stated above. 
 

Criteria for Granting Variances: Section 29.05. The following criteria must be taken into 
consideration by the Zoning Board of Appeals in its review of the request. All criteria must be met 
for the variance to be granted. These criteria are listed below, along with our remarks: 

 
1) Nonuse variances. The Zoning Board of Appeals shall have the power to authorize 

specific variances from site development requirements such as lot area and width 
regulations, building height and bulk regulations, yard width and depth regulations and 
off-street parking and loading space requirements of this Ordinance, provided that all the 
required findings listed below are met and the record of proceedings of the Zoning Board 
of Appeals contains evidence supporting each conclusion. 
 

a) That there are practical difficulties that prevent 
carrying out the strict letter of this Ordinance. 
These practical difficulties shall not be deemed 
economic but shall be evaluated in terms of the 
use of a particular parcel of land. 

 
Remarks: The home was constructed in 1871. 
Although, the buildings/structures were 
conforming at this time, the existing home and 
accessory building would be considered non-
conforming due to not meeting the front yard 
setbacks as well as, the accessory building 
cannot be constructed in the front yard under the 
current Zoning Ordinance. A survey of the 
property is shown and showcases that there is a 
lack of a front yard. 
 
ZBA Members will determine if this criterion is 
met. 

 
 
 
 



City of the Village of Douglas  
Zoning Board of Appeals - August 27, 2024 
Page 3 of 4 

b) That a genuine practical difficulty exists because of unique circumstances
or physical conditions such as narrowness, shallowness, shape, or topography of the
property involved, or to the intended use of the property, that do not generally apply to
other property or uses in the same zoning district and shall not be recurrent in nature.

Remarks: The unique circumstance is that the home, constructed in 1871, originally
met the standards of the ordinance in effect at that time but is now considered non-
conforming by today's standards.

ZBA Members will determine if this criterion is met.

c) That the practical difficulty or special conditions or circumstances do not result from the
actions of the applicant.

Remarks: Due to the nature of the existing placement of the home, this was not result
of the applicant.

This criterion appears to be met.

d) That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant.

Remarks: The applicant is requesting to place the fence in the ROW which is City
owned property and not on their property.

This criterion is not met.

e) That the variance will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this
Ordinance and will not cause a substantial adverse effect upon surrounding property,
property values, and the use and enjoyment of property in the neighborhood or district.
If a lesser variance would give substantial relief and be more consistent with justice to
others it shall be so decided.

Remarks: Fencing is allowed in both residential and commercial districts. The
applicant is entitled to have a fence for privacy. The surrounding property owners and
drivers passing by could view this troublesome the purpose of not allowing fencing in
the Road Right-of-Way is to protect and have access to the utilities underneath the
Road Right-of-Way.

ZBA Members will determine if this criterion is met

f) That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density
would unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted
purpose, or would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome.

Remarks: The strict compliance with the letter of the ordinance relevant to placement
of fencing does not allow for fencing in the front yard due to the historical placement of
the existing home, but the owner is allowed for the placement of the fence on the
property if the owner meets the Zoning Ordinance requirements.

ZBA Members will determine if this criterion is met.

g) That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to



City of the Village of Douglas  
Zoning Board of Appeals - August 27, 2024 
Page 4 of 4 

overcome the inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the 
hardship. 

The applicant is only requesting to place the fence in the road right of way along Mixer. 

ZBA Members will determine if this criterion is met. 

h) That the variance shall not permit the establishment, within a district, of any
use which is not permitted by right within that zoning district, or any use for
which a Special Use Permit or a temporary permit is required except
where failing to do so would result in a constitutional taking for which
compensation would otherwise have to be paid because the application
of existing regulations do not permit a reasonable use of land under
existing common law or statutory standards. In this case, the appellant
shall first have sought and been denied a rezoning, Special Use Permit
approval, and/or a PUD approval and shall have their variance request
processed according to the requirements of Section 29.05 (2).

Remarks: This criterion is not applicable

Recommendation and Summary of Findings. At the upcoming Zoning Board of Appeals 
meeting, the board should carefully consider all the facts presented in this report, testimony 
given by the applicant, and comments provided by the public. Again, all the criteria outlined in 
section 29.05 must be met in order for a variance to be granted. A suggested motion is shown 
below, along with our findings: 

Suggested Motion: 
I move to [approve/table/deny] the granting of a variance from Section 21.01 (12) (a) (3), No 
fence shall be permitted in the street right-of-way or easement for 91 Mixer in the R-3 
Residential, on a parcel of land described as P.P District to allow for a fence in the Road 
Right-of-Way or easement, based on the findings that the request [meets/does not meet] the 
standards of the ordinance, 


















































